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Laboratory
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throe other copies for Ur, J. F. Brovin of Associated Architects Enginecro Inc.

"2, llo attenpt has been made here to go into any detail on design considera-
tions lor the varicus types of installations whizh will be required by the
Laboratory, but such data vdll be ferwarded abt a labor date.
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Io accordonce with a directive of the General Monaper, U.S.A.E.C., the i
Mansger, U.S.A.B.C., Offlice of Santa Fe Dirocted Operations, has the rospoos~
ibility of undertaking a complete study of the functioning of the Los Alumoa |
Laboratory in all its ramifications, and of deriving frcem this stucy a compre- ‘
hensive master plan for the housing of the Laboratory's activitles in permanent E
firsproof ntructures, these structures to be erected at sites so disposed that N
they wills a. permit successful eecurity protectlon; b. in general csuse no
danger to persons or property outside the Project boundaries ac a result of
their activities; c. will similarly causs no interference ono tc the othor be-
cause of these same activities; and d. will be conveniently located with
rospect to one mnother. The background againat which the study muct teko
place iw that at present the major part of the comrunity ectivities pluo tke
ocentral technical establishmant are erowded together nlmost et the geographle
center ol the project land ares on Los Alemos Mess, with some thirty other
technicel arens located to the east, southeast and southwest, some within a
half mile or less of tho southern Project boundary which runs along Stete Route
#.. The entire northern half of the project area plus the mounteinous regicno
in the Jemex Mountains to tho west heps been loft unused except for the five
water gpources in the Jemez Range, the militury firing ranges along the Geuje
water line in the upper rogions of Darrances Cenyon about two miles north of
the main technical arca, and the golf course and other rocreationsl facllities
pitunted about a mile snd @ half north of the main techinicul aroa along the
upper reachaes of Pueble and Bayo Cenyons. This weans, then, that aprroximate-
ly two-thirds of the project area, about forty-five or fifty pquare miles, has
been relatively unteuched and ahould be seriously considered for pooplble use
as the planning work moves whead.

II. Delincatlon of the Problom,
A, Tochnical Aree Locotions

Spacinlly, the activitics of the Laboratory must be oo situsted that
reasonably convenient access is to be had among all the paris, and preferably
that the mnjor arsas of activity can be quickly reechod from the ccmmunity
areus. No bard and fact rule can be eet on this, but it would certainly seem
sdvantageous to huve all of tho tachnlcal areas within easy driving distunce,
gay [ifteon minutes at the most, of the mest remote rosidential arees, so that
4n the event of an emorgency at an ilsolated latoratory or firing site respons-
ible technical porocnnel couwld be swmoned to the scene in short order. Also,
if at all ponnible, connecting roedways should be so arranged that it will not
be necesssry - nc it i ot present - to trangport explosives, active materisl
and elasslfied cbjecte through the residenticl and business areas cr closely
adjecent thereto. '

B. Organizetional Rélations

Organizaticnally, the sastaor plan will huve to be adjusted to bsst
accomodate Laboratory procurement and warschousing problems, maintenmnce facil-
itien, ntility supply undé distribution, specisl shop services, adequate com-
munications, and both normel and contaminated wasto dipposal. At the present
time the arrangements in almost all of these fields ore sorewhot of a hodge
podge, and mecossarily oo because cf the way in which the Project was organired
and oonptructed during the War years when it was assumed that all installotiona
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wore temporary and would be removed at the end of the War. Another phage of
the organizational planning wust necessarily come from highur authority ond ,
involves decivions as to methods of community orgenizotion and menngement, K
ircluding the question of duwl or single contract operation of all physical o
facilities including the Laboratory, with its resultant effoct on the macner !
in which soctual work in done, by whom and under what suthority; angd with .
further conmequent result in the desirability of location for such items aw

pover plentn, meintcnanco shops, sowoge dispesal units, and even contral ad-
ministration buildings. In thiy £ield the Consultant Flanning Group must

clearly set up the oversll reswl.ts which %ill follow frow varying organization-

al arrengoments so that higher muthority can mslkio such docipions with a full
understanding of the consequencus which will follow.

- Cs Decision on TA-Ll Locatlon

A decision on the future usec of the TA-l location was forced upen up
by the time scale which future plonning and reconstructicn activitios nmust
necessarily follow. The A. A. E., Conpultnat Planning Group, bscause of dil-
ficultics in the recrulting acd clesring of adequotely experionced parsonnol,
will not bogin to function on any lsrge scale before Octcber or November of
this yeur., If they are to do a thorough job, it is difficult to believe thuu
anything resembling o maptor plan or several elternetive mester plens can be
produced in less thsn six to eight months, so it will be perhaps March, 1948
beforo these plans are roody for dimcupsion ard conssquent decision by higher
authority. Another year will elapse bofore the first gection of buildinge
for a new aree can be completed and occupiod, so that it will be around Marech,
1949 befors we cuon expect any use from the {irst siructures rosulting {rom the
planning work, The cdecision having been made that the central functions of
the Laboratory are to be transferred to South Mesa, we can now declde more
clearly vhat should and should not be donv to the structures and fecilitles
in TA-l., Any large structures which have tu be built here showld bo as light
and temporury ac possible, but since all of the prosent structares will to in
use for a period of two years and many of them up to zix yeare, dopending on
how fapt reconstructicn progresses, proper maintenance snd the provision of
cortain umenitiss at least will surely be necessary and will have to be con-
sidored ap part of the price to be pald for tho relocation of the central
Laboratory functicns.

III. Status of the Project as a Fhole
A. Boundary Conditions

The originel land acquipsitions in Sendovel County which reculted in
the Project as it is today were made by the real cotate section of the
Albuquerque U. S. Engincers Offics and the reculting bounderize, roughly, sre
the Santa Feo County line on tho east, State Route f4, end the Bandeller National
Mozument on tho south, Baco locution £l on the west, and the Santa Clara Indiun
Resorvation on the north, the whole conmprising a little moro than seventy-five
square miles, '

B. Porsibilities for Expansion

It 1s conceivably pospible tc acquiro some lund east of Sandoval County
‘o State Route #4. Ono half is San Ildefonso Pusblo territory, ono quarter io
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held by the Park Sorvice ap part of the Bandolier Nationel Monument but there

are no widoly publicized Indian ruins in tho area and if national policy so dic- o
tated, this stretch of territory could probably be ceded to the A.L.C. by f
Congross, and tho romsining quarter is privetoly ownod. For reapsens of security o
patrol, the existence of the boundary along Route f#4, rather than one to two !
wiles back up into the canyons and mesus where patrol ls almost inpessible, "
would certainly be to our advantage. On the south the land between the Project 3
boundary and Route #4 is privately owned, and could no doubt bo precured. On

the wost, Bace locctlon #1 is privately owned ant it ip conceivable thet the

A.E.C. could sequirs by outrignt purchese a considorable percentage of this

property. At the mement such acquisition has no grest value, but in the future

1f the Project continues ite work in the developuent of atomic power plants, the

Vallo Crande would make an excellent locatlon for cne and could be cennoected to

tho moin body of the Project st no too grect expense with a tunnel through the

Jewez Range, thoreby insuring all-westher communicetion. Conceivably alseo,

should [uture necessity sripe for more stringent security measurcs regurding the
Project us o whole, o fenced line in the lowland of the Valle Grande would cer-

tainly make a more easily wetched and protacted boundary to the west than does

the present western boundary, running au it doee through the highest purt of the

Jamez Range. To the north there is little likelihood that Congress could be in~

duced to doprive the Sonta Clara Indian Reservaticn of any of the land now as-

slgned to it, or that it could legally do so should it so dosire.

€. GCencral Considerationn

All of the above discussion ip, of course, subject to the eventual dis-
pooition which the A.E.C. may care to make of the Laboratory ans & whols, but
inasmuch as & recent directive cells for the plannipng and reconustruction which
1s about to bo undertaken, it eeems reasonable to expoct thet the Latoratory
will become & permanent inptitution unless the oxigencies of posslible future
guided misslle wurfare should ropder it completely impossible of defence and
henoe cauoo its absndonmsnt and/or destruction. This latter grim note should
eloo romind us that in the overall planning scheme it may bo wiso to completely
bury certuin key installetions cuch as storage vaults for active msteriel and
othor important bomb components, co that in the svent of destruction of all or
most of tho community by guided mipsile attack, we would at least hove the oe-
santinl parts remsining here of the weepons themselves, in such locatlon and
in such condition ap to ba salvapged fer retalintion.

I7. Status of the Community
A. Population

: Early in 1943 when conptruction for this project got under way, tho
totnl population wos only several hundred. During the Wer years the civilian
population grew to approximately 2500 and another 3000 wilitary persoancl were
stotioned hers, Since the end of the Vier military personnel hes declined to
ebout 1,000 men, but the civiiian population growth haoo more than exceeded the
loso of militaxry personnel and the total population of the Preject ip now in
the neighborhood of 7,000. An additional 2,000 persons or more oommute daily
to and from the Hill, the majority of thom being conciruction contractors!'
enployeos, jonitors, manual laborers, houcehold servants and the like, although
a sizable number of more respzonbible persomsol also ccamute. From the viewpolot
of convenloncn of oporations and the growth of community pride and integrntlon,
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it 15 of course desirable that as manny as poscible of theso commuter: sventually
be housod here at Los Alamos. Proliminery studies prepared for the lepepor heve
indioatod that o minimum of 1200 new family bousing units above and beyond thore
presently contracted for will bo recuired in the mext tvo or threc yesrs for o
this purpose. Thie obviously will only take care of housing units nhich are not
available in any form end will not take corc of replacement of the meny hundrec
temporary units in tho Morgen, Hanford, McKee and possibly the Leonuard Yood ,
grosp, A& an estimate, perheps 1000 more units will be required for this pur- it
pouo somo time in the next five to sevon years. .

B. Primary Community Aress

. The sire of the primery areas required for housing and tweic community
funstions will prolably turn out to be hetwoen twe and three square milec. Ap-
proxinatoly two-thirds of this can bo taken care of, 1f it be deosired, here on
Los Alumos Mosu, including tho western housing developwent and adjacent Denvor
netal housing development. The remnining one-third could Le conveniently pite
unted on North Hesa or in the hilly country north and west of the golf course,
this again requiring considleration of possiblo locationr for new tocknicel arcas.

C. Secondary Comnunity Arcus

The plze of secondery community arees is & little difficult to defline
because such recrenticns as hiking and horseback riding, os well as hunting end
fishing, will teke pecplo to all but tho most inaccessitle spots which hove not
been rostricted for Leboratory upse. DBeceuse of the nature cf the terrain, it
1n often very difficult even to koop them out of such reziricted areas unlesp
they know their wey around very well and lmow where they arc at all times. For
more organized recrention, bacabsall, golf, tennis end the like, tho ereas alroady
allocated ure probably suflicient with perbeps some slight enlergement, anc the
vhole question of allocating nev sccondary areas to tho cozmunity beccmes princi-
pally ono of negative sgeigoment, in that all areas pot restrieted for Laboretory
ugo, nor directly adjeccnt to the wator sources, arc essentielly medo available
for hikers, ete. This would cortainly cmount to o minimum of thirty or forty
square miles and, of course, to all intents end purposos the Bandolior Naticnel
Monument prcperty to the south and esot should come under this came heading be-
cause it 1s likewise open to the public,

D. Socurity Considerations

Basic to all considerations affecting the status of the community and
its land allocetions e the question of whether or mot Los Alamos ip to te an
open communlty. Originally an Army post on & Government reservation, it otill
rotaine the closed charactoristics of an Army establishment, although it is now
under civilian control. All persons, whether inhobitants, commutors, cr visit-
ors, muot have permimpion to enter the Project and must cerry proper passos and
identification ot all times. There hop beon seme telk thet this situatlon would
be oased and that ell personp baoving transportation could enter the Projoct at
will, loaving only the various technical orcas, public utility sorvices, etc.,
restricted to perconnol pormitted to enter then. Thip would put the Project on
epeont’inlly the seme statup as Boulder Dam and Boulder City, and there is much
in parellel. Boulder Dam is & large and valuuble Covernment property wlich,
during thie War, was carsfully guarded &s cn epccntial sector of the Var elfort,
yot Boulder City, whore the people rosponpible for the Dum reside and where the
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pdministrative offices sre lecated, is an cpen town oo & public highwoy where :
any tourist may stop and shop around to suit himself, Only when he vislts the "
Dam are hic movements restricted. Applying this principle to Los Alames, 1t R
would seom feesible to have the main Laborstory and the community definitely =
serarated physically, by soveral miles if possible, and in tris regard it ls ?
unfortunate that ths Main Technical Arsa and wost of the community heve become .
located so clopely adjacent to one another on Los Alnmos Mesa. The icecl or- g
rungement would probably be to place the community two messs to the north or
even in Barrances Cunyon, ot least a mile or two from the nearect technicel in-
stallation, with u new mccecs roud built to the community locatlen from the Rio
Grande Valley. Even yet it may not bo too late to accomplish this becauso the
only large amcunt of permanant housing thus far constructed in the Yestern Area
is sufficiently off the main Los Alumos Mese road to serve our purpeses, although
the ecrly completion of the comaunity center will make this transition a diffi-
cult ore to decide upon and it may bo that sufficient segregntion can be obteined
simply by croating o telt of park land - sey, 100 yerds minimum width - around
the Main Technical Arce on this mess, and therely achieve phycicol separation by
this protoctive belt and by mdequate fencing, rather than by a sepsretion of a
'mile or two. A third method of achleving the desired result is, of coursce, to

, move the entirs Main Technical Area from Los Alnmos Kesa to some other location

C: or locations. Thkis possibility will be takon 8op in the next section.

Y. Statup of the Laborutory
A, Perponnol : '

The personnel presently employed by tho Laboratory number about 1,500
and ap a conservative estimate, were hcusing freely available, this would probably
be increansed to 2,000 or pecsoibly 2,200, Essentially working for the Laboratory,
slthough nnt 1ts employees, are the numerous junitors, laborers and workmen of
the various maintenance and comatruction crafts, wbo are required to keep it in
running order. Theee people pumber perhaps five or oix hundred and require pro-
visions in the way of working quarters, offices, shops, warehouse facilities,
etc. in or clepely adjacent to several of the technicsl arcas. The future worke
ing force required by tho Laberatory, then, muy be set at something like 2,500 to
3,000, barring contingencies such sc m mojor change by the 4.E.C. of the basic

(f? directives by the Laboratory, in which case this figure might be either halved

- or doubled es the case might be. Allowing perhapc 300 =q. ft. of overall work-

ing space por employee, this means that the Laboratory will require around
900,000 8q, ft. of floor space and with the eddition of wurchousing und utorage
facilities, this figure would probebly roach a million square feet of floor sracce
The totul ground area set aside for technical purpogoswill, of course, be far
greater than this, bsceuse of the necessity for isolation of many operationn
made hezardous by the use or production of high explosivesz, radiocactive wustes,
etc. As we have neen previously, somethinpg like twenty or twenty-flve squure
miles is presently set sside [or this purpose and some enlurgement of the figuro
may be necospary oither due to rearrangement of existing facilities in relation
to one another, or because of the comstruction of & numbsr of new technical areeg.

-

B. Details Concerulng Existing Arens
1. Thel (llain Technical Ares) ‘

a. Thip 25 acro area is the seat of all the central functionp of
the Laboratory. Here are the Directer's offico, the variouc administrative and
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service groupn, the central wurshousing, the technical sbops, the principal &
chemical and metallurgical laboratories, most of the experimental physics -
mackines and equipment, the headquartere, ohops, and preparation luboratories g
of the zroups which operate the firing sites and other outlying technical g
aress, as well as the offices of the A.E.C., Securlty, Salety, Fire Protsction,
Accountable Property, and Communicetions personnsl. !

b. As noted sbove, all its buildings will still be in uee for the |
next two to six yoers, while now facilities ore being constructsd at South Mesa,
and conpideratle money will have t¢ be extendod for reseconable malntenance and J
mninor constructien, os well as for certain lurpger censtruction jebs admittedly
temporary in nature. The Sigma Building Addition will be the first of thsse.

2, Th-2 (Omege Site) , *

n. There is much to be said both for and apninst the present locu-
tion of Omegu Site. A yoar ago the necessity of providing an icmedisto shelter
for the installetion of a fast reactor Ly the Phyoles Division made necessary &
decision as to whether or not it phould be located at TA-2, olrecdy used for
three years by the Division, Considerations regarding trained persomnesl, shop
equipment and the like made the decision in the affirmutive, in spite of the
fact that the gito was located in Los Alumos Canyon directly below the occupied
Los Alawos Mese and that o eerious accident would probably cnuse earth and air
cshock with consequent probtable danger to structurce on the lesa, and would also
producoc a cloud of radloactive smoke and dust which might encanger the inhabe-
itants on the Meca.. Tho physiciste' calculations showed that the probsbility
of much accidents on both counts was remcte enouch that Dr. Bradbury docided to
go shead with the reactor shelter at TA-2. This in turn involved constructicn
of two other small pormsnent buildings for guard quarters and stsndby electric
power, so that approximately balf of the site is now of permancont construction
end the remainder could be mede oo withcut too grest an expenditure. Basically,
the question of whether the oite should remain where it is, once the woney spent
and decisions already mede have been discounted, is that of whether or not the
inptallationc there are still regorded es having a sufficient degreo of safety
by the phyecleists to rarrunt their retention in a epot so close to the main
community functions.,

be One baole problem which will have to be solved 1f Omeps Site
ie to continue as & permanent location ip the problem of tho stream which runs
through the eite from west to east. Apparently the soil on which the main
building ic sltuated 1is of an extremely porous naeture and the result hss been
that the whole underside of the eastern holf of the building is under mere or
lesy continuous pressure from water which has secped through frem the stream.
Scme atiempt to meet thie problem hes already been made by doopening the strcam
slightly and by toking steps to waterproof the main basement of the structure.
It i» basically a bad condition, however, asnd the.enly solution may well be to
provide either & large culvert all the way through the sits or to line the sides
and bottom of the streom wilth concrete so that no seepage is pocsible, The
former solution ls preferable in that it would probebly run to little mors ex-
penee and that it would also make posaible a considerable extension of the
driveway ares which ls now somewhat cramped by the location of the stream.

3. TA-3 (South Mesa Site)

a, South Mesa Site iv a grouping of temporary frame structures of
extremely light construction together with some prefubrlcated hutnents, ceveral
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suall magazines, a fex lightly fatricated test chambers and one concrete explo-
sives burning pit. Tho site was originally built for G Division and upon dimsso-
lution of this organization in 1945 was transferred o Group X=7 in the Explecsives
Division. It has always been used for the menufacture end testing of detonators,
this latter usually in such numbers as to amount to less than haelf a pound of
high explosive in any one {iring. The entire site in echeduled for etandontecatl
whonever the proposed permanent detonstor laboratory is comploted on Tvo Mile A
Mesa. The existing facilities are essentially useless for any further purgcse ‘
other than perhaps temporary warehousing or something of that neture. The land !
on and adjacent to the eite, however, is cleared and roletively level, and could

be used as a location for some large tochnical installation should plonning studios
phow that the area wap desirable for such. 4 road through the ares will have to

be retained in any event tc provide amccess to a. the 44 KV power line coming in

from Albuquerque and b, the msst for exhaust gasos for Omegs Site which 1s eched-
uled to bs built in the nenr future on lower South liesa.

4o TA~, (Alpha Site)

a., Alpha Site wap constructed as a test {iring site for emell charges

. by members of G Divielon in 1944. Upon the diseolution of G Division in 1945 1t
\“; was transforred to M Division and has continued to be used for its originsl pur-

pose. Tho maximum charges fired there amount tc 200 lbs, The bulldings are all

of ressonnbly light temporary construction, consisting of an underpreund con-

trol building with periscops, a emsll work shed directly edjacent to the control

building, a butment used as @ trimaing building, threo small mapozines and a dor¥k

room. Dr. Froman has recently asked that the site be considered pormanent, but

ti.is should be studied in the light of the overecll plan.

’

5, TA-5 (Beta Site)

n. Beta Site was constructed as an adjunct to Alpha Site in 1944.
It was originally used for slightly larger charges then Alpha Site, rarnging up
to 600 pounds por shot. In tto spring of 1945 the oite was improved and a fir-
ing point was built some 700 feet to the eant just off the toe of the mesa, to
be used for charges up to ong ton. Situsted at the end of tho mesa as it ls,
tho only vinible strusturcs at the site are the control building, together with
& trimming building further back slong the road and a medium-sized magazine.

(:' ~ The firing site ip still in use and hue three basic dieadvantages: a. the types
of experiments performed in the course of the firing have coused numerous foresot
fires in the volley land on botl sides of the mesa, which is very narrow at that
point, and in spite of numerous fire roads which have been cut through the forest
to moet thic contingcency, recurrent fires still present a very awkwerd problem;
b, Yeing sltunted on high ground, the air shock from the shots travels directly
acrogs the intervening 3/4 mile and caupes aprreciable tremors at the DP Site
buildings; c. again, because of its being situated on Ligh ground, it ip within
fragment range of the Sandia Canyon installation and persons working there must
be notified to seek shelter whenever a shot is fired ut Beta Site. From thio
it can be seen that some edvantages would cortainly accrue vere the firlng activ-
{ties now caorried on at the site to be relocated either to some wido expanse of
mepa land which could be cleared of brush and trees or else to a narrov cabyon
which could likewise be clesred and whosge high walls would prevent tho eacape

of flying fragments. If this were done, tho activities presently carried on at

Alpha Site could conceivably be removud to the present location of Betu Slte and ,

be more huppily accomodated thers. If the road is used to gain access to

Mortandad Canyon, both sites will have to be oliminated. In any cvent, the Beta
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Site locantion will require & complete rebullding somewhere before it muy be coa~
pidercd usable sp @ permancnt facility.

4

6. TA-6 (Twe Mile Mesa)

8. The Two Hile Uesa Laboratory arcs has aerved scveral purposes |
during the pnpt poverasl years., It originally consisted of some rough field
installationn such as bunkers, togethor with & contirol building and shop.

Ordnonce Division personnel used it for miscellaneous test purposes, principally
in connectlon with handling and testing of high explosive. In October of 1944

a test suucer some 200' in diameter wes constructed to be the scale model of ¢
lake for the purpoee of trying recovery shots. So far as I know, the project wue
dropped about the time the paucer was completed and it was never used. In tho
spring of 1945 the area vas used for the censtruction of a dotonutor tecting lab-
oratory conslsting of one main Luilding and several test structures, the latter
of concrote construction. A number of smnll mapsezines have been sinco sdded.

The lab building end test. structure moy certainly be considored pormanent ifl active
ities with delonators arc to continue nt Two lile Mewse. At the precent timo a
conplute pot of plens has been proparcd by Black and Voetch [or the construction
of o pormunent detonator laboratory and, so far as I knew, these planp are ready
for bids. In caee o permanent detonator laboratory is not built on Two Mile
Mesa, the area would furnish up good a building cite for some other large tech-
nical inptallation ap would South lesa, agein teing clecor of tresc and relatively
level.

7. TA-7 (Comez Ranch Site)

8. Gomez Ranch Site was constructed in 1944 for some type of smsll
explosives experimonts involving radicactive material. It counsisted of a frama
siructuro of about 600 sq., [t. flocr area and two firing pits or stadim about 40!
in dismeter with earthen banks about 5' high surrounding them. Sc far as I know,
it has not been uped since the spring of 1945. It is & srmell installetion snd of
no great importance.

8. TA-8 (Anchor Sito West)

a. This slto nas establiched in the fall of 1943 for the Ordnance
Division, It is built near what wes formerly the residence aresn of Anchor Runch
which wap vacated only a short time before construction work began on the ner sita.
The control building with ite periscope tower, machine shop, control roomp and
attondont magozines are ol concrete construction and are locuted in an embunkment.
Being set as they wore in a natural drainage ares there have, of couwrse, been
recurront troubles ofter storms with the catch bapin and culverts {illing or be-
coning clogged, with the result that large quantities of water ond wud vero woshed
down into tho site. This was finally eliminated in 1946 by the construction of an
earth dam and diversion diteh just west of the site. This site 1s of permsnont
construction and now that the drainsge troubles have been climinated, should be
serlously considered as a permanent locotion for some tochnicel activity, poscibly
for a roloceted TA-16 (S Sito). In the fall of 1945, it was turned over to the
Explosives Division end has since been used for varicus experimental work in con-
nection with the manufacture of certain types of high explosives.

9. Ti-9 (Anchor Site Lest)

a. Anchor Site East is a motley collection of temporary and semi-
permanont structures and was oripinally a sort of catchell for miscellaoneous
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experiments 1n explosives macufacture, explosives test firing, and experimental
X-ray work. The muin manufacturing and X-ray focilities are directly adjccent "
to the Anchor Ranch road and the tect firing facilitler are several hundred yards
to the east in the open meadow. One firing site which consisted of an undor~ §
ground hezagonal ateel-lined pit with a hoavy roof wso oripinally used for re- |
covery shots but was abandened 4in the spring of 1945 in favor of & similar but
larger chamber ot TA-12 (L Sits). The other firing location, ccmmonly knorn ap |
"far point," ip still in eervice, but tho concrete structure constituting the .
control room is now in danger of failing from ropeated shock and will phortly

be ebandoned, There is nothing et this site wmorthy of being considered pernanent
congtruction and the area should bte considered as avsilable for some other pur-
pose. If it 1s determinod that 4t shsell continue as an explosives handlipg area,
the nev buildings should certainly be locatod considerably lurther from the main
road than is now the cage,

10. TA-1C (Bayo Canyon Site)
a. Buyo Canyon Sité work was begun in Bayo Cunyon in Serptomber,

1944 using two W, tanks me mobile control roome and personnel shelters during
the firing. In the early spring of 1945 there were constructed: a. special

" buildings for the radicactive chemigtry work necessury for the experimento and

b. a heavily bunkered control building, battery hcuse, muguzine, and trimming
building to two firing points. In the late epring of 1945 & second Liring ores
wus conotruoted, aguin having & control building, o battery bullding and two
firing polnts., Since that time several other minor structures have been com-
ploted. The slte was originully constructed for G Division and was turned

over, upon diseolution of tho latter in the fall of 1945, to M Division in
conjunctiion with & group of raedic-chemists from CMR Division. The indicotions
are that the type of experiment which bas been done hore vill be continued ip-
definitely ap a standord part of the Laboratory work, and a permancnt experi-
mental area of roughly the present dimoensions and witl the present facilitien

or improved equivalents will be necececary as far inte the future oo we cen now
noee. Because of the location of the present site near the eastern pections of
North Mesa and Medlo less, both of which will almost undoubtedly be seriocusly
considered for either community or Lsborator; inctallstionp, it would seem quite
possible that Bayo Canyon might not romain a suitable location for the present
type of experimentation, involvipng aes it dees the firing of explosive chorges up
to 600 pounds in size ond the utilization of extremely radioactive sources which
rroduce highly penetrating gomma rays. The genersl design of the firing roints,
control buildingo and explosives handling facilities has proven peneruslly satic-
foctory und with somo improvement can undcubtedly be used vhercver the site may
be reconotructed. The chomistry building and attendent facilities have proven
very unsetisfactory end et the present time are undergoing a complete redesipn
study by CMi Division personnel: vith some help expected on tho matter shortly
from Black and Veatch. It ip exceedingly unlikely that any final design will
result from this study in less than eighteen months to two years because of the
complex conslderations involved,

11, TA-11 (K Site)

s K Site was constructed in the winter of 1944-1945., It con-
sists of two heavy concrete bettleship-typo structures, betvieon the armored
nosen of which charges of high explosive up to 200 lba. have been fired, &
comblnution control and laboratory building heavily btunkersad, and a shop and
general purpops building also heavily bunkered., Back along the road leading
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2o tho site a trimming building end a magasine were conctructed. Sinco then
a spall mapazine hap been added at the site end several other smoll modifica-
tions have been sffected. The elte was originelly consiructed fer G Divisien
and upon its dissolution in 1945 wus assigned to P Division which has since n
used it for betatron work. The eite is sufficiently isolated to be used again |
for exploutives work i€ necessary and is of such heavy constructicn thet with ‘
minor modifications it may definitely be coacidered permuncnt. At the present ;
time its upo es what 1s essentially s pure physies leboratory makesz it sort of :
en odd stopehild in the firing site area in which it is locuted, und possibly

some conclderation should be given to the housing of the betatron in some

othor location more ccnvenient to the general operations of the Phycice

Divieion,

12, TA-12 (L Site)

a. L Site was constructed in the esrly spring of 1945 for the
Explosives Division and consisted of a ctecl-lined hexagenel pit with a heavy
earth filled cover of bridge-like construction which wus used for certain re-
covery experiments. An open section of the meca just east of the pit was
. used for several montho as & more or less unimproved firing site for charges
(T up to 200 pounds, and in conmnection with thie work a hutment was set up «s 8
work shop and two small megeziners were insctalled, together with a emall AC
dlesel genorator set. The site was abandened by ¥ Divieion in April, 1946
and has not been used since that time. It is our understending thot X Div-
iedon has plans to reusctivate the pite ond to construct thore permanent
laboratory bulldinge of & size and nature yet to be deternmined, but presumably
in connection with some sort cf explosives testing or experirent. The loca-
ticn of the site is all right for a perwanent instellection for thic sort of
operation, previded the charges fired are relatively smsll - say, up to 100
- pounds - and provided that the area ie cleared of treec [or a reesonable radius
around the site. DBecuuse it is Just across the canyon from TA-15 (R Site), it
has no pospibility of being used for the firing of large chargeo.

13. TA-12 (P Site) !

a. This site was censtructed in the eorly [fell of 1944, and con-
(:' ciote of a frame control building protacted by o timber barricnde from the {ir-
ing area some 600! tc the emst. At tho fir*ng erea ara tvo concrete battlechip-
typo structures, once of which has been altered to provide a heavy stecel blister
on one side. Those bulldings were used for X-ray work in connection with ex-
plosives oxperiments. The site was originully constructed for G Divipion -and,
upen dissclution of the latter in the fall of 1945, wss turned over te M Div-
ision., It hoo since been used for & variety of miscelloneour experiments for
which no other site was quickly available, and ac the result of wxhich a fair
emount of radioactive contamination has been scattcred on the chclf ersa lead-
ing down into the canyon on the northeast side of the firing area. The inten-
ticn now 1s to establish & working area for trailers und a hutment for certain
rockup arrangenents of the experimental equipment required for experimente with
highly radiouctive sources which are sctually to be performed at some other
location., The site iep located on a broad but heavily forested mess ond the area
should be more thoroughly cleared of trees and undergrowth if the site io to be
ueed permanently for any purposo., It is elso Tairly cloge to S Site and if tho
latter beccomes a permancnt explosives manufocturing ares snd expands further to
the east, F Sltc wmay woll btecome too cleose for comfert and huve to be nbandoned.
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1. TA-L, (Q Site)

‘ a. Q Site was constructed for X Division work in the fall of .
1944, It has & number of small sposcialized buildinge for clone observatioa |
work on omall explosive charges including a closed chamber, an cpen chamber, :
a smell ptsdium with a centrel firing point, and control buildings end rooms
for the above, togother with several small magazines, trimaing buildings and
the like. Bsecsuse of a deviation from specifications, the closed chamber.
failed structurally after severel charges had been fired in it. It wus
buttressed vith stoel beamp, but has soen little furthor use. The open cbam-
ber and the remuinder of the site aro still in upe. Locaoted on the far slde
of a ridge psrallel to the R Site road, the site location still secms adequnte
for explosives experiments of the magnitude now employed. Al) the bulldingo
sre oithor temperary or unsuitahle and will have to be completely rerlaced for
permanent occupancy. Protably the simplest thing to do in this regard would
be to robuild the site a short distance east of the prosent location and then
eliminate the originul site vwhen the new ono 1s occupied. On tho other hand,
it is conceivable that the work done at Q Site could readily be combined with
vork now done elserhere &nd a larger firing site with better central facilities
establisked for several types of experimentation, each of whicl involves the
firing of small charges. There are several jlaces on the land leeding to R Site
vhere thiy could be done, provided aguin that the heavy ferest was cleared away
pufficiently to meke e good sized operating ares free from the danger of forest
fires. - .

15, TA-15 {R Site)

. The first installotions at R Site were completed in October,
1944 and consisted of a central control building &nd lmboratory with soveral
firing points, o trimming building, and e couple of hutments und small mega~
vines, Since thet time numorous additions have boen made, mostly various
typos of tarricade gt ner firing sites. The site was oripinally essipned to
X Division lor the usce of Walter Koski and ves later trunsferred to M Div-
ision, together with Ur, Koski'c group. Late in 1946 general conversations
between this oflice, the Director's office snd the M Divislon people reculted
in & genorel ggrecment that R Site be considered the permanent lecetlon for
firing explosives experiments involving charges up to ec much as two tons.
Since thal “ime a series of smnll permanent firing control charbors and e
completely new lurge ecale firing site witb an undorground timbor control
building have beon completed. A neow cutting buillding 1s under construction
at the moment and a new permunent magezine isc in the bands of W. C. Kruger
Co. for the making of contract drawings. Gencrelly speaking, the R Site area
ptill scems to be an 1denl location for the purposes to which it 1s now boeing
put, and the Planning Group should seriously consider keeping it so. With
propor layout of facilities it is concoiveble that ec many as four or five
soparate firiog pointe could be established and uged at the same time, work-
ing from & central ssrvice and maguzine aree. Two bad feeturas of the present
installution, whick should be romoved, are the two firing sites directly ad-
Jacent to the road leading to the lerpe scale firiny point recently completed
at the castorn end of the mesa. Vith ap much ppace ap ie avalloble at R Site,
thore 1o lilttle excute for tho pormenent installotion of firing sites direct-
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16, TA-16 (5 Site)

' @&+ S Site vas constructed early in 1944 ond ccnsisted of six .
buildings including o stosm plont. Since then the site hus been under practi- N
celly continuous uxpanslon, more or less dignified and delinented under the ;
titles S2 Expansivn, S3 Expansion and S4 Expansion., In the course of these
progressive additions, the totel plant hes come to include come eighty build- )
ingo of various cizen and uses for 81l types of explosives manuflacture, storage, ‘
trestment, and testing. Regrecttably, some 85% of the site 1s of temporiry frame o
construction end is completely unpuitable for use s e permunent explosives
manufacturing plant. The arem may be viewed both [averably aand unfavorably.

Tho cleared expanse originully precent has proven sufficiently large for tbe
plant to grow to its present size without edditional forsst clearing, Snould
it remain in this locaotion and be expanded in the future, a large amount of
such clearing would be mececsary. On the unfevorzble eide 1s the foct that
the site is within easy welking distence of Stato Route #4 and represents a
tompting target for poscible pabotsurs, especlslly sinco Mogasine Areas A and
B are betwecn the site and Route #4 and the prospective saboteur by breesking
into one of the=o locations could secure ready ammunition for dectructive

(:y purpopes, Also eameshed in the problem is the question of whether such a
major explosives manufacturing instsllation should be kept here at Los Alemcs
at sll, This is & metter which must be cottled at higher levels und poesibly
by the Commission iteelf,

17. Th=17 (X Site)

a. X Site censtruction wes reguosted early in the fall of 1944
uand was to be used for expansion of X-ray work on explosives exyeriments them
being carried on at Anchor Site Zast, The work was concelled sherily after
conotruction began and the site has not been ugsed for any purpese since that
time. It ig dublous if it can be used fer snything, inuesmuch us the water
“ line {rom the Pejarito water ccurce weect of the Ancnor Ranch area now passes

close by.

18. TA-18 (Psjarito Canyon Laboratory)

<:} a. This ares was developzd during 1944 for G Division, three

firing pointe belng established, one for omall cherges of a few peunds esch in
the west wing of the cenyon, a second for charges of severul hundred pounds
ench in the south wing, end a third for testing charges up to two tons in the
wast wing, A heuvily bunkered laboratory was built at the junctilon of the
txo cunyons, and s trimming buillding and magezine constructed buck along the
road towuard Anchor Ranch. During 1945 ccveral storage hutments, two magazines,
a carpénter shop, aend un underground buttery bullding were constructed in the
contral arca, and considerable nlterations were made in the second {iring
point, mekinpg it suitable for the firing of charges up to two tons in slze.

‘ Uoe of the pite paoped to M Divisien in the foll of 1945. Early in 1946 &
26" x 40! pddition to the central laberatory building was constructed for
integral ossembly work involving redicactive materiasl. In the spring of 1947
the permanent Integral Ascembly Bullding wee completed in the northL wing of the
cupyon and the ares was ebendoned us o lceavion for explosives experiment. Bo-
cause of the isolation of the cite it is idesl for integral aoeembly work and I
feel it should continue to bo used for thot purpoce. A permanont laborustory
building should replaco the present one and the other temporary structurec be
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removed, The concrotc "battleuhips“ and tho under;round structurer might us .
woll be loft - scmo use might be found for them, gl

- 19. TA-19 (East Gate Laboratory) !

a. This emell site, vonasisting of one frame laboratory bullding
nnd a storage hutment, was congtructed in the summer of 1944 for the use of \
Dr. Segre, who needed an isoluted opot for oxacting experimental work on omall
soiurces. Because of the rush in which the constructicn was carried out, the
silie was located just eapt of the Prolect boundary, ao indeed was Poet One, the
ec it pato to the Project. The past two yoars the site has been used only upon
ocuaalon by the Physics Divislon. The disposition of it regquires no great
ruih, and it may well be thut upon 1ts demolition no replucement %111l be re-
qu red,

-

20, TA-20 (Sondia Canyon Site)

6. This explosives fiold tect eite wes built for G Diviclen in
the spring of 1945, Installations consisted of s laboratory and control
building adjacont to & firing point for cherges up to 50 pounds, two "Dumbo"
wetal veosels for small reccvery chots, o smell magezine, a trimming hutment,
and an underground pit with a matal maesh cover (which failed alter the firpt
few shotn) for lerger recovery shots. Ir April a 22 mm gun setup, together with
a second magorine and s smell workshop, wap constructed in & eide canyon lo re-
place a similar setup previously installed in an armored room on the south side
of Bullding B in the Main Technicel Area. The site was aseigned to 1 Division
in tho fall of 1945 snd osince then hus been used for & miscellony of experiments
rithout much change in tho oripinal installstions. The canyon could be reached
by a proparly conotructed reed from ihe mesa lend to the west, and the necessity
for uping the Reute #4 aprreech thereby be obvisted. All the construction im
temporary in nsture and will have to be replaced if the site becomes permasnent.

21. TA-21 (DF Site)

' o. This important sito wao conceived and built duriny the spring
and summer of 1945 for major chemicsl and metallurgical work. At that time 1t
consisted of ten major structures together with tventy-odd smaller once, Later
a concrete vault and several other raintenance und cterage buildinge were con-
atructed. Thip site is the nsarest thing to a pormanent working area now used
by the Laboratory, ond with replacement of several frame structures by fireproof
ones can be made completely so. koot of the planning work required vill be in
this category.

22, TA-22 (TD Site)

#, This site wac constructed in the swmmer of 1945 for O Division
as a center for the handling of speciel assemblies, replaecing V Site. It cone
slsted of two prefsbricated stran stoel bulldings, two large [{rame megaczines
(unbarricaded) and one improved ranch building. The assembly work wans trane-
ferred from Los Alamor in 1946, and the site has since been used by X Division
as an additional storage arca for high explosives.

23, Th-23 (Mu Site)

a. This firing olte was constructed in the spring of 1945 for
X Diviwsion, to relieve the crovded firing echedule at "far point," Anclor Site
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Eaot. Up to & ghort time agv it was used for cumera work but is nov being re- .
equipped for X-ray work, still in connection with high explosives experimonto. ',
The battloship-type concrete structure at the firing point may be consldered

permanent, but the control building, magcozine, and small laboratory are not. 5
This site could well take on greater lmportance, and is not badly located. Y
Decisions made regarding it will have to be in conjunction with those regard- ‘
dng the other firing sitos in the same vicinity. X

24. TA-24 (T Site)

g, This site, directly adjocent on the north to S Sito, mas con-
ptructod in the fall of 1944 as a pervice area for the X-ray examinatlon of
high explosive chargen. A year later a lerge storsge magasine was congstructed
pnd general salterations and additions made to the moin laboretory bullding and
the several hutments. On Novembwr 19, 1946, e fire allegedly reculting from
impropar wiring destroyed the center pertion of the laberatery building. The
latter was subsequently repaired with considerable improvements during tbe
ppring of 1947. All buildings st the site are temporary end will eventuslly
hove to be roplaced. Any deciclons ag to the rebuilding of the area wlll have
to be tied in with the plans for S Site.

25, TA-25 (V Site)

(]

a. This area, having tvwo main buildings, and now essentially an
Antegraol pert of S Site, was censbructed in 1944 for experimental work in con-
nection with special assvemblies. Vhon this work wes traneferred to TD Site in
1945, the site undervent extensive alterationp (delayed seversl woeks by a
fire ir & nerly constructed soction) dc Lit it for S Site process work on ex-
plosive chorges. As is tho cape with TA~24, its fate must be settled along
with that of S Sito.

26. TA-26 (D Site)

a, D Site, constructed in the summer of 1946, concists only of
¢ ooncrete storsge vault bullt for CMR Division, plus a small sentry building
and guard tower. Located about 300 yards from Pogt I, it has recently been
subjocted to criticism from the Security People, and will probubly be replaced
by a vault elpevhorc, after which we chould be able to turn it to scme new
purposes, as it 1s certalnly permanent in nature.

R7. TA-27 (Gamma Site)

a, This ares was originally used for field testing of H. E.
assomblics and was tho third area noted in the Pejarito Canyon conotructlon.
In tho fall of 1945 it wae considerably improved for the use of G Division in
test firing of two ton charges, nnd rencmed Camms Site. After bsing in use
for several months, a faulty explosion scattered unburned L. E. for a consider-
able distance up and down the canyon, subsequent to which the arsus was isolated
vith protsutive fenceo and abandoned. A thorough epraying with oil followed by
burning would seem to be the only feacible msthod of rendering the srea sale
for uge again. :

28. TA-28 (Magazino Area A)

a. This slte conoists of five permenent mapgazines constructed ae
part of the S3 expansion on the lcolated mese directly south of S Site. It
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prororly fenced and guarded, 1t could be a good permanent installaotion, but it :
is too closu to Route #4 for comfort. i

) 29, TA-29 (Hagazine Area B) . ' Y
. &, This area is an abandoned CCC Camp directly adjncent to the ]

wast pate of the Project at Route F4, in which two pormanent magazines were
constructed in 1944. Both are still used by S Site. The area can be roached
by anyone who cares to cross or crawl through a cattle fence along Route #4.
It should be abandoned as eoon &s poszible regardleos of the fate of S Site,

30. TA-30 (Electronice Test Area)
&, This small site consists cf a aingie hutment erected in the
epring of 1945 on the Anchor Ranch Road at the intersecticn with the Psjurito
Canyon Road. Xt is shortly to be removed.

31, TA-31 (Bast Receiving Yard)
a., Thip aren was met up for use of the Navajc Van Lines in the
summey of 1245 with the construction of a roofed receiving dock. Since then
four other buildings have been added [or general warehouse and salvage work.
All are temporary. Any plonning regarding this aren will of necessity have
to tie in with the overall ploas developed for the Tech Procuremont Group
operations,
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